
Join us!  In an effort to enhance meetings post COVID-19 emergency 
orders, the City Council invites you to join and/or participate in a variety 
of ways:  Via computer Zoom meetings (no app is necessary), telephone, 

email and/or text!  See details on page 3. 

 
Vestavia Hills 

City Council Agenda 
June 28, 2021 

6:00 PM 

1. Call to Order              

2. Roll Call 

3. Invocation – Jim Cartledge, Vestavia Hills Chaplain 

4. Pledge Of Allegiance  

5. Approval Of The Agenda 

6. Announcements, Candidates and Guest Recognition 

7. City Manager’s Report 

8. Councilors’ Reports 

9. Financial Reports – George Sawaya, Asst. Finance Director 

10. Approval Of Minutes – June 9, 2021 (Work Session), June 14, 2021 (Work Session) and 

June 14, 2021 (Regular Meeting) 

Old Business 

11. Resolution Number 5330 – A Resolution Vacating A Drainage Easement Located At 1806 

Vestwood Hills Circle; Lot 16, Vestwood Hills; Paul Bruno & Elizabeth Bruno, Owners  

(public hearing) 

12. Ordinance Number 3013 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 3632 Dabney Drive; Lot 16, 

Altadena Forest Estates, 5th Sector; Vita Marshman, Owner   (public hearing) 

13. Ordinance Number 3014 – Rezoning – 3632 Dabney Drive; Lot 16, Altadena Forest Estates, 

5th Sector; Rezone From Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1; Vita Marshman, 

Owner   (public hearing) 

14. Ordinance Number 3015 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 1700 Shades Crest Road; Whitney 

Holland (Owner)   (public hearing) 

15. Ordinance Number 3016 – Rezoning – 1700 Shades Crest Road; Rezone From Jefferson 

County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1; Whitney Holland, Owner   (public hearing) 



16. Ordinance Number 3017 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2819 Acton Place; Lindsay And 

Jake Brown, Owners   (public hearing) 

17. Ordinance Number 3018 – Rezoning – 2819 Acton Place; Rezone From Jefferson County 

E-1 To Vestavia Hills R-1; Lindsay And Jake Brown, Owner   (public hearing) 

18. Ordinance Number 3019 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2632 Alta Vista Circle; Lots 15 & 

16, Altadena Country Club Sector; Victor Maldonado, Owner   (public hearing) 

19. Ordinance Number 3020 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2600 Alta Vista Circle Lot 8, 

Altadena Valley Country Club Sector; Mark And Hillary Smith, Owners   (public hearing) 

20. Ordinance Number 3021 – 2632, 2624, And 2600 Alta Vista Circe; Lots 14, 15, 16 And 8, 

Altadena Valley Country Club Sector, Rezoning From Shelby County E-1 To Vestavia Hills 

R-2; Victor Maldonado And Mark And Hillary Smith, Owners   (public hearing) 

New Business 

21. Resolution Number 5332 – Alcohol License – SR and RS LLC d/b/a Vestavia Package Store 

Requesting an 011- Lounge Retail Liquor – Class II (Package) License For 2970 

Columbiana Road; Samir Rana, Executive   (public hearing) 

New Business (Requesting Unanimous Consent) 

22. Ordinance Number 3024 – An Ordinance Exercising The Right Of First Refusal Pursuant 

To The Construction, Operation And Reciprocal Easement Agreement Between Vestavia 

Plaza LLC And The City Of Vestavia Hills Alabama Dated November 21, 2013 (public 

hearing) 

First Reading (No Action To Be Taken At This Meeting) 

23. Resolution Number 5333 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Accept A 

Proposal From Ray Engineering Group To Provide Electrical Engineering Services For The 

City Hall And Police/Court Buildings   (public hearing) 

24. Ordinance Number 3022 – An Ordinance To Repeal Ordinance Numbers 56 And 2279; To 

Amend Chapter 6, Article Ii, Division I, Sections 16-17, 6-18, 6-19, In The Vestavia Hills 

Code Of Ordinances; And To Prohibit The Sale, Possession, Use, Storage, Distribution And 

Manufacture Of Pyrotechnics And Fireworks In The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; And 

To Prescribe The Penalties For Violation Of This Ordinance    (public hearing) 

25. Ordinance Number 3023 – Conditional Use Approval – Conditional Use Approval For A 

Home Occupation; 4950 Reynolds Lane; Willie And Darlene S. Myers, Jr., Owners   (public 

hearing) 

26. Citizens Comments 



27. Adjournment  



SPECIAL NOTICE CONCERNING CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 

Due to the COVID-19 safety advice given by the ADPH, the City Council work sessions and 
meetings are available via video-conference and teleconference. If you choose not to attend 
in person, you may still participate. Following are instructions for three options to 
participate remotely. 

COMPUTER PARTICIPATION (view/participate in real time) 

To participate in by videoconference, click https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4555343275. When the 
Zoom.us window opens in your browser, click “Allow” so that the page may open to a waiting 
room. The host will open the meeting and bring all into the meeting room at that time.  All 
participants will be automatically muted upon entrance to the meeting. If you wish to speak during 
time(s) identified for public input, activate the “Raise Hand” feature and unmute yourself by 
toggling the mute button. When the Mayor recognizes you and gives you the floor, state your name 
and address for the record and then you may address the Council. 

Using the icons on the Zoom screen, you can:  
 Mute/unmute your microphone (far left)
 Turn on/off camera (“Start/Stop Video”)
 View Participants – opens a pop-out screen that includes the “Raise Hand” icon that you

may use to raise a virtual hand
 Change your screen name displayed in the participant list and video window
 Toggle between “speaker” and “gallery” views – “Speaker view” shows the active

speaker; “Gallery view” tiles all of the meeting participants

TELEPHONE PARTICIPATION (view/participate in real time) 

To participate by telephone, dial 312.626.6799 and enter the meeting ID: 455 534 3275. All 
participants will be automatically muted upon entrance to the meeting. If you wish to speak during 
time(s) identified for public input, press *6 on your phone keypad to unmute yourself. Then state 
your name and wait for the Mayor to recognize you. When the Mayor recognizes you and gives 
you the floor, state your name and address for the record and then address the Council. 

TEXT AND/OR EMAIL (prior to the meeting or in real time) 

If you do not wish to join the meeting but would like to ask a question or make a statement 
regarding an item on the agenda, you may email the City Council directly at 
City.Council@vhal.org. You may also text your question/statement to City Council at 
205.517.1370. Both of these options are available prior to and during each work session and 
meeting. Be sure to provide your name and address for the record and your comments will be 
recited to the City Council as the corresponding item is being addressed. Note: As a matter of 
record, your name and address are required. If identification is not provided, your 
comment/question will not be presented. 



City Council Minutes 
June 9, 2021 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

JUNE 9, 2021 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in special session on this date at 4:00 PM, 
following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law.  This meeting was held with a portion 
of Staff and general public/audience members attending via Zoom.com following publication 
pursuant to Alabama law.  The Mayor called the meeting to order.  The City Clerk called the roll 
with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:    Mayor Ashley C. Curry 

Kimberly Cook, Councilor  
      Paul Head, Councilor 
      George Pierce, Councilor* 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:   Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 

Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
Jason Hardin, Police Captain 

       *present via Zoom or telephone 
 

Mayor Curry led the invocation which was followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a motion for unanimous consent for the consideration and 
action of all items of the agenda as presented, with the addition of an Executive Session. 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent of the agenda as presented was by Mrs. Cook 

seconded by Mr. Head with the addition of an Executive Session.   Roll call vote 
was, as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
Mr. Pierce – yes  Mayor Curry – yes    
     motion carried. 

 
 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
June 9, 2021 

Page 2 
 

OLD BUSINESS  
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3008-A 
 

Ordinance 3008-A – An Ordinance Amending Ordinance Number 3008 To Join An 
Additional Municipality In Formation Of The Cahaba Solid Waste Disposal 
Authority.   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 3008-A was by Mrs. Cook and seconded by 

Mr. Head. 
 
Mayor Curry explained that this Ordinance is being amended to add municipalities to the 

incorporation of this Board.  He read the five municipalities that are participating which include 
the cities of Hoover, Vestavia Hills, Pelham, Mountain Brook and Trussville.  In order to do this 
and get the organization finalized and incorporated for an inaugural meeting of the Board, this 
special meeting was needed. 

 
The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else to further 

address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call 
vote was as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mayor Curry – yes   
     motion carried. 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS (UNANIMOUS CONSENT REQUESTED) 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
 None. 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 The Mayor asked for a motion to go into Executive Session to discuss the purchase/sale 
of real estate for an estimated 30 minutes with no further business to follow. 
 
MOTION Motion for Executive Session for the purchase/sale of real estate for an estimated 30 

minutes was by Mr. Head and seconded by Mrs. Cook.  Roll call vote as follows: 



City Council Minutes 
June 9, 2021 

Page 3 
 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
Mr. Pierce – yes  Mayor Curry – yes  
     motion carried. 

 
 At 4:07 the Council exited the Chambers and entered into Executive Session.  At 4:30, the 
Council re-entered the Chambers and the Mayor called the meeting back to order. 
 
 At 4:33 PM, Mrs. Cook made a motion to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 4:34 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor  
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

CITY COUNCIL 

MINUTES 

WORK SESSION 

JUNE 14, 2021 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in a regular work session on this date at 5:30 PM, 
following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law.  This meeting was held with a portion 
of Staff and general public/audience members attending via Zoom.com following publication 
pursuant to Alabama law.  The Mayor called the meeting to order.  The City Clerk called the roll 
with the following: 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  

OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT: 

Mayor Ashley C. Curry 
Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem* 
Kimberly Cook, Councilor  
Paul Head, Councilor 
George Pierce, Councilor* 

Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
Dan Rary, Police Chief 
Jason Hardin, Police Captain 
Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
Lori Beth Kearley, Asst. Engineer 
Marvin  Green,  Fire  Chief  
George Sawaya, Asst. Finance Director 
Keith Blanton, Building Official 
Umang Patel, Court Director 
Cinnamon McCulley, Communications Specialist 

*present via Zoom or telephone

COMMUNITY SPACES UPDATE 

Ken Upchurch, TCU Consulting, gave a brief update as to the remaining projects which 
are still in construction.  He stated they will abate construction activities to accommodate the June 
24 date for the I Love America Day celebration in Wald Park.   

Mrs. Cook asked about the existing problems with the dugouts and the sunscreens in Wald 
Park.  Mr. Upchurch explained that the early decision was made not to completely redo the dugouts 
due to cost concerns. He added they will install fans to provide some ventilation in lieu of cross-
ventilation that could be provided by cutting holes in the wall.  The sunshades were initially bid 



in the project, but when they discovered the electrical grid issues, which raised the price, “we” 
accepted a credit and the sunshades were deleted. He said they are shopping for alternative support 
structures to install sunshades. 

Mrs. Cook asked which “we” accepted the credit and made the decision to delete the 
sunshades.  Mr. Upchurch stated when the concrete was torn out because of the electrical issues, 
and the new concrete could not support the structures.  He stated that TCU is studying three options 
but is not prepared this evening to make a recommendation to the Council. 

Mr. Pierce stated that the complaints started back in March and when was the decision 
made not to supply sunshades. 

Mr. Upchurch stated it was very early on when the concrete was being torn up.  He stated 
the supports could not be installed on the existing foundations and, since then, TCU has been 
studying solutions and making sure what is installed is in the best public interest. 

Discussion ensued as to the credit from the contractor and what it would take to install 
sunshades. 

Mrs. Cook asked about the landscaping.  Raynor Boles stated that when the grass on the 
grand lawn was installed, there was a shortage of grass.  The type of grass that was planted in the 
larger section of the Grand Lawn is now out of stock everywhere.  The decision was made to install 
a different type of grass on the smaller section of the Grand Lawn (the section nearest the 
swimming pool).  The first grass installed did not perform the way it was supposed to and contains 
more weeds than what was expected.  They will leave the unsatisfactory lawn in place for June 24 
and then go back in and patch and repair where they can. He said they would work on it until the 
product was satisfactory. 

Mrs. Cook stated that she was unaware of these issues until she began to field comments 
and questions from the public. She asked that TCU advise the Council, in the future, of any changes 
to the original specifications that might cause citizens to be dissatisfied or generate questions. 

Mr. Pierce echoed Mrs. Cook’s request and asked for the same forewarning on the 
Community Building. 

Mr. Upchurch stated they did find out that there is a delay on the materials for the handrail 
around the running track and some mechanical issues will also have to be worked through. He said 
TCU will keep the Council informed. 

Mrs. Cook asked the procedure for discussion of these problems and who is the “we” who 
makes the decisions.  Mr. Upchurch stated that they have meetings with the contractor, City 
Manager, staff, and TCU. If there is a cost to a change, that decision runs up the chain to the City 
Manager or the Public Services Director; otherwise, TCU makes the decision. 

Mr. Upchurch stated that the volatility of the pricing of steel and other construction projects 
wreaked havoc on the Wald III bids.  He stated that they are studying options to see if they can get 



the bid back within decent budget numbers.  He advised that the Council do nothing on this bid at 
the moment. 

Mr. Boles gave an update on the Crosshaven Drive Roadway Improvement project.  The 
biggest obstacle right now has turned out to be one of the utilities involved.  They are being more 
responsive now, but it has been a challenge.  He stated that this cannot be relayed within the time 
remaining for the Work Session.  

Mr. Downes stated that they can pick this back up during the City Manager’s report during 
the regular meeting.  He clarified that the grass being discussed is the grass is in the front, near the 
Aquatic Center.   

There being no further business, the work session adjourned at 5:57 PM. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



City Council Minutes 
June 14, 2021 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

JUNE 14, 2021 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 6:00 PM, 
following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law.  Social distancing along with limits 
of attendees, this meeting was held with a portion of Staff and general public/audience members 
attending via Zoom.com following publication pursuant to Alabama law.  The Mayor called the 
meeting to order.  The City Clerk called the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:    Mayor Ashley C. Curry 
      Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem* 

Kimberly Cook, Councilor  
      Paul Head, Councilor 
      George Pierce, Councilor 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 

Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
Dan Rary, Police Chief 
Jason Hardin, Police Captain 
Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
Christopher Brady, City Engineer 

      Lori Beth Kearley, Asst. Engineer 
      Keith Blanton, Building Official 
      Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
      Umang Patel, Court Director 
      George Sawaya, Asst. Finance Director 
      Cinnamon McCulley, Communications Specialist 
       *present via Zoom or telephone 
 

Steve Dedmon, Vestavia Hills City Chaplain, led the invocation which was followed by 
the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a motion of approval of the agenda as presented. 
 
MOTION Motion to approve the agenda as presented was by Mrs. Cook seconded by Mr. 

Head.  Roll call vote was, as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  



City Council Minutes 
June 14, 2021 

Page 2 
 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried. 

 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, CANDIDATES, GUEST RECOGNITION  
 

 The Mayor stated that earlier this afternoon the League of Municipalities celebrated the 
service of Jabo Waggoner as the longest-serving senator for the State of Alabama.  Today 
he was presented with the “Home Town Hero Award” for the services he has performed 
in the Legislature.  Mayor Curry stated that it was the City’s pleasure to host this event. 

 Mr. Pierce asked everyone to put June 24 on the calendar for the annual “I Love America 
Day” celebration with free swimming, lots of celebrations and a fireworks show that 
evening. 

 Mr. Pierce welcomed Roger Steur and Sandra Cleveland, Vestavia Hills Chamber of 
Commerce Board members, who were scheduled to attend the meeting. 

 Mrs. Cook welcomed Kelly Bottcher who was present from the Chamber in the Zoom 
audience. 

 Mrs. Cook welcomed Katherine McRee representing the Cahaba Heights Merchants 
Association.   

 Mrs. Cook also welcomed Roy Brook, the “flag man,” who promotes patriotism and 
celebrates local first responders and veterans. 

 Mr. Head welcomed Kirk McCulley, President of the Parks and Recreation Board.  He 
stated that the Board will hold a work session, tomorrow at 5:30 PM in ECR. 

 
 

PROCLAMATION – FLAG DAY – JUNE 4, 2021 
 

 
 The Mayor presented a Proclamation designating June 4, 2021 as “Flag Day.”  Mr. 
Downes read the Proclamation aloud and the Mayor presented it to Mr. Roy Brook. 
 
 

PRESENTATION – CHILDCARE RESOURCES 
 
 Morgan Emahiser, Director of Development, Childcare Resources, appeared before the 
Council to express gratitude for continued support from the City.  She presented the statistics on 
the children served, including children in Vestavia Hills and asked for continued support. 
 
 Mrs. Cook asked about the services provided by Childcare Resources. 
 
 Mrs. Emahiser explained that they have three programs which include lower income 
support, provide support for area childcare facilities and also give information to parents 
regarding child care, including childcare in Vestavia Hills. 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
June 14, 2021 

Page 3 
 

 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
 Mr. Downes invited Raynor Boles to update the Council on the Crosshaven Drive 

progress. 
o Mr. Boles explained that the east side of Crosshaven will progress rapidly and 

should be fully functioning. This side entails much of the widening and that should 
aid traffic as the other side is still progressing.  The Overton section is also 
completed.  The waterline replacement is being done through the summer and it is 
very difficult work on both the contractor and the residents of Cahaba Heights. 

o Mr. Boles explained the need to go ahead and replace the 60” diameter pipe that 
will be discussed later in the meeting.  He stated that this is a major pipe in the 
network of Crosshaven.  He explained the drainage of the area and how the pipe 
is failing.  There is a request on the agenda to immediately replace the pipe before 
the new roadway is installed on top of it.  He stated that there is a utility working 
in this area.  The closure of this road for a few days with detoured traffic will aid 
in the installation of both the pipe and this utility installation and will require a 
minimum five days. 

o Mr. Downes explained the detour routes and the ability for nearby residents to get 
into their homes. 

o Mr. Boles explained that there will not be disruptions in providing water unless 
something unforeseen happens. 

o Mr. Pierce asked why the highlighted pipe construction area is so large.  Mr. Boles 
explained that there are several pipes and utilities located in that area that need to 
be taken care of at the same time. 

o Mr. Pierce asked about the time of delivery for the replacement materials.  Mr. 
Boles explained that they will only install concrete and he cannot answer that 
tonight.  The roadway will not be closed until everything is on-site. 

o Mr. Boles stated that BWWB is on-site with them to assist whenever a waterline 
is hit because there is a lot of bad soil in this area.  If there is a utility disruption, 
all utilities are required to give notification of the disruption unless it is 
unintentional. 

o Mr. Boles updated the Council on the cooperation of the City in assisting Jefferson 
County on their part of the construction at the intersection.  Jefferson County will 
piggyback on the City’s bid for a change order to allow the contractor to do the 
intersection without the delay of a bidding process. Funding will pass through the 
City and Jefferson County will reimburse for the expenditure. This will allow the 
project to come together more expediently and give the final product that the City 
has been waiting for. 

 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

 Mr. Pierce commended the Cahaba Heights Merchants Association and the participation 
and leadership of Mrs. McRee.  He indicated that seven businesses there won on the “Best 



City Council Minutes 
June 14, 2021 

Page 4 
 

of Vestavia Hills” featured in the Vestavia Magazine.  He attributed this success to the 
leadership of the merchants and the residents who participated by shopping local. 

 Mrs. Cook showed her copy of the latest Vestavia Hills Magazine and pointed out it 
featured the best businesses from throughout our City. She encouraged everyone to review 
it and eat/shop at these businesses. 

 The Mayor stated that it is good to see small businesses coming back.  He stated that it is 
difficult for these businesses find employees but the governor is cutting off the extra 
unemployment in mid-June which should help the labor supply. 

 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for approval of the following minutes:  May 17, 2021 (Work 
Session) and May 24, 2021 (Regular Meeting). 
 
MOTION Motion to approve the minutes of May 17, 2021 (Work Session) and May 24, 2021 

(Regular Meeting) was by Mrs. Cook and seconded by Mr. Weaver.  Roll call vote 
as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried. 

 
 

OLD BUSINESS  
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5326 
 

Resolution Number 5326 – A Resolution To Accept A Bid For SHAC Dog Park And To 
Authorize The City Manager To Execute And Deliver All Documents 
Necessary To Secure Said Construction   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5326 was by Mr. Pierce and seconded by 

Mr. Weaver. 
 
Mr. Downes showed a drawing of the proposed park for the Sicard Hollow Athletic 

Complex (SHAC).  He explained the background and recent approvals of the grant to fund this 
dog park which is the first in the City.  The estimated budget for the proposed dog park is an 
estimated $300,000, including design fees and amenities such as benches, etc., which was 
approved by the Council with the adoption of Resolution Number 5274 on October 26, 2020.  He 
stated that the construction specifications of the park were bid and the city recommends 
acceptance of the lowest responsible bidder.  This will provide two acres of property for larger 
dogs and a smaller park for smaller dogs.  He showed a detail of the budget, dog walking paths, 
amenities, training area, etc.   

 
Mrs. Cook asked if the City pays for the designs. 
 



City Council Minutes 
June 14, 2021 

Page 5 
 

Mr. Downes explained that the grant will cover design fees, amenities and all expenses 
associated with the park. 

 
The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else to further 

address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call 
vote was as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5327 
 

Resolution Number 5327 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And 
Deliver A Proposal With Gresham Smith For Preliminary Bridge Redesign 
Alternatives Analysis Of The Proposed Pedestrian Bridge Over US-31 At 
Wald Park    (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5327 was by Mrs. Cook and seconded by 

Mr. Weaver. 
 
Mr. Downes stated that this was discussed at an earlier meeting with DeJarvis Leonard to 

come up with options for a better design cost on this project.  ALDOT has emphasized the 
commitment to get this project to fruition. 

 
Blair Perry, Gresham, Smith and Partners, was present.  He explained that GSP had 

submitted the original proposal for the design.  He stated that the beam manufacturers stated that 
due to market consideration they would not be able to obtain this beam at a reasonable cost and 
refused to bid on it.  He stated GSP will reevaluate more conventual beam structures that would 
work on this project, but this will require structural evaluations. 

 
Mrs. Cook asked how the new alternatives might affect the look of the bridge. 
 
Mr. Perry stated that is one of the items they want to evaluate.  The large part of the 

aesthetics is in the elevator tower so this may not have a great impact on the appearance of the 
bridge. 

 
Mrs. Cook asked if the Council will review these recommendations once the design is 

complete. 
 
Mr. Perry stated that they planned to present the recommendations to the Council prior to 

proceeding with another bid. 
 
Discussion ensued as to the manufacture and cost-effective alternates to the beam 

manufacture. 
 



City Council Minutes 
June 14, 2021 

Page 6 
 

The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else to further 
address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call 
vote was as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5328 
 

Resolution Number 5328 – A Resolution Authorizing Additional Funding And A Time 
Extension For The Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex (SHAC) Pedestrian 
Tunnel; ALTDOT #TAPAA-TA14(931)    (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5328 was by Mr. Head and seconded by Mr. 

Pierce. 
 
Mr. Downes gave a brief background on this project.  He stated that utility relocation work 

will require construction of a temporary roadway to bypass the construction area.  He explained 
the MPO is increasing their grant to help pay for a portion, leaving the City with an additional 
$40,000 match 

 
Lori Beth Kearley, Assistant City Engineer, stated that the waterline and the roadway 

represent a challenge because they cannot just shut down this road, as there is no viable detour.  
The recommendation is to move traffic to a temporary lane. 

 
Mr. Downes stated that the beauty of this is that most of the cost is being picked up by 

MPO. 
 
Mrs. Cook asked about the actual cost of this project to the City.  Mr. Downes stated it is 

about $184,000.  He stated that the BWWB and the MPO have given funding to this project. 
 
Mrs. Cook stated she was never in favor of the project, but, she can see the need for the 

temporary road during construction. 
The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else to further 

address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call 
vote was as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried. 

 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3009 
 

Ordinance Number 3009 – An Ordinance To Repeal Ordinance Number 297 And To 
Amend The Vestavia Hills Code Of Ordinances, Article Iv Entitled “Massage 



City Council Minutes 
June 14, 2021 

Page 7 
 

Parlors” And To Establish Standards And Requirements For The Operation 
Of A Massage Parlor And Massage Therapy In The City Of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama And To Provide For Penalties For Violation    (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 3009 was by Mrs. Cook and seconded by 

Mr. Head. 
 
Lt. Michael Keller stated that the draft Ordinance was addressed and explained at an 

earlier work session.  He stated that this is an update of an older ordinance in order to allow more 
enforceability.  The new Ordinance adopts the Alabama Board’s regulations and changes the 
licensing requirements.  He explained there was a change from the original draft to add that annual 
lists and licenses would be submitted to the City prior to the issuance of the annual license. 

 
Mrs. Cook stated that she appreciated that change. 
 
The Mayor stated that it establishes a better standard for enforcement. 
 
The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else to further 

address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call 
vote was as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried. 

 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3010 
 

Ordinance Number 3010 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver An Agreement With The City Of Homewood For 
Mutual Aid And Sharing Of Equipment In The Fire Department    (public 
hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 3010 was by Mrs. Cook and seconded by 

Mr. Head. 
 
The Mayor stated he encourages these type mutual aid agreements between cities. 
 
Chief Green stated that they have had mutual aid with Homewood but it has never been 

in writing.  This will allow both cities to utilize equipment and apparatus in both cities. 
 
Mr. Pierce asked if this needs to be done with other cities. Chief Green stated that this is 

the last city that was needed. 
 
The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else to further 

address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call 
vote was as follows: 



City Council Minutes 
June 14, 2021 

Page 8 
 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS (UNANIMOUS CONSENT REQUESTED) 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for unanimous consent for the immediate consideration and 
action of Resolution numbers 5329 and 5331. 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent for the immediate consideration and action of 

Resolution numbers 5329 and 5331was by Mrs. Cook seconded by Mr. Head. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5329 
 

Resolution Number 5329 – Authorizing The City Manager To Purchase Equipment For The 
Vestavia Hills Police Department With Funding From A Vestavia Hills 
Sunrise Rotary Club Gift Not To Exceed $8,000   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5329 was by Mrs. Cook and seconded by 

Mr. Head. 
 
Mr. Downes stated that the Rotary Club gave $8,000 to both the Fire Department and the 

Police Department.  Since there was no police department budget approval for the equipment 
expenditure, it requires Council approval. 

 
The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else to further 

address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call 
vote was as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5331 
 

Resolution Number 5331 – A Resolution Authorizing A Change Order In The Crosshaven 
Drive Project For Replacement Of A 60” Pipe In Imminent Danger Of 
Failure And Declaring Such Replacement As An Emergency Situation And A 
Significant Public Safety Hazard  (public hearing) 



City Council Minutes 
June 14, 2021 

Page 9 
 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5331 was by Mrs. Cook and seconded by 

Mr. Head. 
 
The Mayor stated that this was discussed at length during the City Manager’s report. 
 
Mr. Boone stated that, from a legal standpoint, he recommends the approval and adoption 

of this Resolution in order to allow the current contractors to replace the pipe.  He reviewed two 
rules about matters of this nature.  (1) Alabama law states that a public works project is the 
improvement of public property.  This is similar to the dog park construction earlier approved; 
and, (2) if the improvement exceeds $50,000, a bid must be obtained before the work can proceed.  
He stated that the exact cost of this pipe replacement, while undetermined, is subject to the 
Alabama competitive bid law.  He recommends emergency approval because (1) in an emergency 
situation the City can proceed with the repair of the pipe without advertisement of a bid; and (2) 
if the cost is under $50,000 it doesn’t have to be bid; and (3) a change order can be issued to allow 
this repair to happen as soon as possible. 

 
The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
Steve Gargis, 3008 Manor Brook Drive, asked about the estimate of the repair.  Mr. 

Downes stated that, based upon the unit price in the existing contract, they anticipate the 
replacement to cost about $50,000. 

 
Katherine McRee, 3944 Riverview Drive, stated that this needs to be fixed.  She added 

that, as a resident, she recommends shutting the roadway down and getting it done, but added that 
it does concern her on what effects that will have on businesses in this area which if the timeframe 
includes the sales tax holiday, etc.  She asked everyone to be aware of this and the busy times of 
the businesses in the area so that they are not shut down during these times.  She stated that Deck 
the Heights is November 13 and they hope it will all be over by then. 

 
Mr. Downes reiterated that the most important times for area businesses are the third week 

in July (sales tax holiday) and November 13. 
 
There being no one else to further address the Council, the Mayor closed the public 

hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote was as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried. 

 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  

 Resolution Number 5330 – A Resolution vacating a drainage easement located at 1806 
Vestwood Hills Circle; Lot 16, Vestwood Hills; Paul Bruno & Elizabeth Bruno, 
Owners  (public hearing) 



City Council Minutes 
June 14, 2021 

Page 10 
 

 Ordinance Number 3013 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 3632 Dabney Drive; Lot 16, 
Altadena Forest Estates, 5th Sector; Vita Marshman, Owner   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 3014 – Rezoning – 3632 Dabney Drive; Lot 16, Altadena Forest 
Estates, 5th Sector; Rezone From Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1; Vita 
Marshman, Owner   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 3015 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 1700 Shades Crest Road; 
Whitney Holland (Owner)   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 3016 – Rezoning – 1700 Shades Crest Road; Rezone From 
Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1; Whitney Holland, Owner   (public 
hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 3017 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2819 Acton Place; Lindsay 
And Jake Brown, Owners   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 3018 – Rezoning – 2819 Acton Place; Rezone From Jefferson 
County E-1 To Vestavia Hills R-1; Lindsay And Jake Brown, Owner   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 3019 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2632 Alta Vista Circle; Lots 
15 & 16, Altadena Country Club Sector; Victor Maldonado, Owner   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 3020 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2600 Alta Vista Circle Lot 8, 
Altadena Valley Country Club Sector; Mark And Hillary Smith, Owners   (public 
hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 3021 – 2632, 2624, And 2600 Alta Vista Circle; Lots 14, 15, 16 
And 8, Altadena Valley Country Club Sector, Rezoning From Shelby County E-1 To 
Vestavia Hills R-2; Victor Maldonado And Mark And Hillary Smith, Owners   (public 
hearing) 

 
CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 
 None. 
 
 
 At 7:17 PM, Mrs. Cook made a motion to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 7:18 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor  
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution Number 5330 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5330 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ASSENTING TO A 

DECLARATION OF VACATION 
 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS 
 

 WHEREAS, a Declaration signed by the owners of all the lands abutting the 

following described drainage easement situated in the City of Vestavia Hills, Jefferson 

County, Alabama, vacating said drainage easement, has been duly presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for assent and approval of said governing 

body; and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of said Declaration with map attached is marked as “Exhibit 

A”, attached hereto and incorporated into this Resolution by reference as though set out 

fully herein; and 

 WHEREAS, the above-referenced drainage easement is commonly referred to as 

“a drainage easement” and is more particularly described as follows: 

Commence at the southeast corner of Lot 16, Amended Map of Vestwood 
Hills, as recorded in Map Book 160, Page 13, in the Office of the Judge of 
Probate, Jefferson County, Alabama; thence run in a westerly direction 
along the southern boundary of said Lot 16 for a distance of 117.21 feet to 
a point; thence turn an interior to the left of 114° 15' 51" and run in a 
northwesterly direction for a distance of 16.43 feet to the point of beginning 
of the easement to be vacated, lying 7.5 feet on each side of the following 
described line; thence continue along last mentioned course in a 
northwesterly direction for a distance of 49.65 feet to a point; thence turn 
an interior angle to the right of 134 degrees 21' 28" and run in a westerly 
direction for a distance of 50.0 feet to the end of said easement to be 
vacated.. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, that the vacation of the hereinabove 

described drainage easement is assented to and approved and the same is hereby vacated 

pursuant to the provision of Section 23-4-20 of the Code of Alabama, 1975. 

  



Resolution Number 5330 
Page 2 

 

 

 RESOLVED, DONE AND ORDERED, on this the 28th day of June, 2021. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION 
 
 I, the undersigned qualified Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of a Resolution lawfully passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City named therein, at a regular meeting of such Council 
held on the 28th day of June, 2021, and that such Resolution is of record in the Minute Book 
of the City at page _________ thereof. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official 
seal of the City on this the __________ day of ___________________, 2021. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SERVICES 

OFFICE OF CITY ENGINEER 
INTER-DEPARTMENT MEMO 

June 4, 2021 

To:    Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 

Cc:  Brian Davis, Director of Public Services 
Christopher Brady, City Engineer 

From: Lori Beth Kearley, Assistant City Engineer 

RE: 1806 Vestwood Hills Circle 
 Vacation of Easement 

Engineering has reviewed the request for vacation of this easement and finds no issues with the 
request being granted.  This is a 15’ drainage easement;  however, the actual storm pipe is 
located outside of the easement area as platted.  A new 15’ drainage easement will need to be 
recorded around the existing pipe.  The easement should be 7.5’ from the center of the pipe on 
both sides.  This will be done via plat once the vacation has been recorded. 

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5330



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5330



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5330



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5330



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5330



SKETCH OF EASEMENT 

TO BE VACATED 

---

LOT 17 

/ 

MAY 27, 2021 

o· 30• 60' 

�-L-

PORTION OF EASEMENT 
TO BE VACATED 

LOT 16-A 

A=l 11.62' 
R=50.00' 
0=127'54'24" MEAS. 
0=127'07'35" MAP 

VESTWOOD 

HILLS CIRCLE 
(SO' R.O.W.) 

Description of an easement to be vacated. 

FOUND ,t4 

REBAR 

Commence at the south east corner of Lot 16, Amended 
Map of Vestwood Hills, as recorded in Map Book 160, 
Page 13, in the Office of the Judge of Probate, Jefferson 
County, Alabama; thence run in a westerly direction along 
the southern boundary of said Lot 16 for a distance of 
117.21 feet to a point; thence turn an interior to the left of 
114° 15' 51" and run in a north westerly direction for a 
distance of 16.43 feet to the point of beginning of the 
easement to be vacated, lying 7.5 feet on each side of the 
following described line; thence continue along last 
mentioned course in a north westerly direction for a 
distance of 49.65 feet to a point; thence turn an interior 
angle to the right of 134 • 21' 28" and run in a westerly 
direction for a distance of 50.0 feet to the end of said 
easement to be vacated. 

90'

'\ 

FOUND 3" 

CAPPED 

PIPE 

EXISTING 

L 15' EASEMENT 

LOT 15 

\�o• BUILDINCi SETBACK 

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5330



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5330



Ordinance Number 3013 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3013 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 22nd day of March, 2021, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

3632 Dabney Drive 
Lot 26, Altadena Forest Estates, 5th Sector 

Vita Marshman, Owner(s) 
 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 28th day of June, 2021. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
 



Ordinance Number 3013 
Page 2 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION: 

I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3013 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 28th day of June, 2021, as same appears in the official records of said City. 

Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2021. 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 3013 
Page 3 

 

 



3632 Dabney Drive



3632 Dabney Drive



3632 Dabney Drive



3632 Dabney Drive



City of Vestavia Hills
Tax Calculator

Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX MILLAGE

Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills

0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE
Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

====>  3632 Dabney Drive Property Address

====>   $                                                           265,400  Appraised Value of Property TOTAL MARKET VALUE

10% Assessment Homestead Rate

$26,540.00 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

Citizen Access Portal 
Descriptor

Notes

$545.40 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (20.55 mills rate)
$763.03 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (28.75 mills rate)

$1,308.42
Total County remits to City for split with 
BOE

CITY

$400.75
SPC DIST1 BOE local rev (County gives 
directly to BOE)

SPC SCHOOL1 (15.1 mills rate)
$217.63 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE
$545.40 Annexation Revenue to CITY CITY (General Fund portion) (20.55 mills)

$1,381.41 Annexation Revenue to BOE
SCHOOL + SPC SCHOOL1 + 
CITY (BOE portion)

(8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

$1,926.80 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

Legend
City Revenue
BOE Revenue

3632 Dabney Drive



3632 Dabney Drive



3632 Dabney Drive



3632 Dabney Drive



3632 Dabney Drive



3632 Dabney Drive



Ordinance Number 3014 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3014 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY E-2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-1 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-2 (low density 

residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-1 (low density residential district):  

3632 Dabney Drive 
Lot 26, Aladeana Forest Estates, 5th Sector 

Vita Marshman, Owner(s) 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of June, 2021. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 3014 
Page 2 

 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3014 is a true and correct 
copy of such 28th day of June, 2021, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2021. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 

 
 
 



Ordinance Number 3014 
Page 3 

 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     MAY 13, 2021 
 

 CASE:  P-0521-15 
 

 REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning JC E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1  
 

    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  3632 Dabney Dr. 
 

 APPLICANT/OWNER: Vita Marshman 
 

 GENERAL DISCUSSION: This is a compatible rezoning of annexed property on 
Dabney Dr. from JC E-2 to VH R-1. Property was annexed overnight by Ordinance 
3000 on 03/22/21.  

 
 STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
MOTION  Mr. Weaver made a motion to recommend Rezoning from JC E-2 to Vestavia 
Hills R-1 for the property located at 3632 Dabney Dr. Second was by Mr. Sykes. Motion was 
carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Maloof– yes  Mr. Ferrell – yes    
Mr. Honeycutt– yes  Mr. Sykes – yes  
Mr. Weaver – yes  Ms. Barnes – yes 
Motion carried. 
 







Ordinance Number 3015 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3015 

ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 WHEREAS, on the 22nd day of March, 2021, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

1. That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

1700 Shades Crest Road 
Whitney and Thomas Holland, Owner(s) 

More particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at a point on the West line of the SE ¼ of NW ¼ of Section 25, Township 18 
South, Range 3 West which is 460.0 feet South of the Northwest corner of said quarter-
quarter section; thence run in an Easterly direction for a distance of 454.4 feet,, more or 
less, to a point on the Westerly line of Crest Road, which point is 625 feet in a 
Southwesterly direction along the West line of said road from the North line of said quarter-
quarter section; thence turn an angle to the right and run in a Southwesterly direction along 
said westerly line of said road to the intersection with the Northeast line of Columbiana 
Road; thence an angle to the right and run for about 450 feet, more or less, along said 
Northeast line, to the West line of said quarter-quarter section; thence turn an angle to the 
right and run in a Northerly direction along the West line of said quarter-quarter section 
for a distance of 40.8 feet more or less, to the point of beginning.  Less and except any 
portion of subject property lying within a road right-of-way. 



Ordinance Number 3015 
Page 2 

 

 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 28th day of June, 2021. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3015 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 28th day of June, 2021, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2021. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 3015 
Page 3 

 

 



1700 Shades Crest Road 



1700 Shades Crest Road 



1700 Shades Crest Road 



1700 Shades Crest Road 



City of Vestavia Hills
Tax Calculator

Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX MILLAGE

Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills

0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE
Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

====>  1700 Shades Crest Road Property Address

====>   $                                                           468,500  Appraised Value of Property TOTAL MARKET VALUE

10% Assessment Homestead Rate

$46,850.00 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

Citizen Access Portal 
Descriptor

Notes

$962.77 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (20.55 mills rate)
$1,346.94 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (28.75 mills rate)

$2,309.71
Total County remits to City for split with 
BOE

CITY

$707.44
SPC DIST1 BOE local rev (County gives 
directly to BOE)

SPC SCHOOL1 (15.1 mills rate)
$384.17 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE
$962.77 Annexation Revenue to CITY CITY (General Fund portion) (20.55 mills)

$2,438.54 Annexation Revenue to BOE
SCHOOL + SPC SCHOOL1 + 
CITY (BOE portion)

(8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

$3,401.31 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

Legend
City Revenue
BOE Revenue

1700 Shades Crest Road 



1700 Shades Crest Road 



1700 Shades Crest Road 



1700 Shades Crest Road 



1700 Shades Crest Road 



1700 Shades Crest Road 



Ordinance Number 3016 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3016 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY E-2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-1 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-2 (low density 

residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-1 (low density residential district):  

1700 Shades Crest Road 
Whitney Holland, Owner(s) 

More particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at a point on the West line of the SE ¼ of NW ¼ of Section 25, Township 18 
South, Range 3 West which is 460.0 feet South of the Northwest corner of said quarter-
quarter section; thence run in an Easterly direction for a distance of 454.4 feet,, more or 
less, to a point on the Westerly line of Crest Road, which point is 625 feet in a 
Southwesterly direction along the West line of said road from the North line of said quarter-
quarter section; thence turn an angle to the right and run in a Southwesterly direction along 
said westerly line of said road to the intersection with the Northeast line of Columbiana 
Road; thence an angle to the right and run for about 450 feet, more or less, along said 
Northeast line, to the West line of said quarter-quarter section; thence turn an angle to the 
right and run in a Northerly direction along the West line of said quarter-quarter section 
for a distance of 40.8 feet more or less, to the point of beginning.  Less and except any 
portion of subject property lying within a road right-of-way. 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of June, 2021. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 



Ordinance Number 3016 
Page 2 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3016 is a true and correct 
copy of such 28th day of June, 2021, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2021. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 

 
 



Ordinance Number 3016 
Page 3 

 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     MAY 13, 2021 
 

 CASE:  P-0521-17 
 

 REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning JC E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1  
 

    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  1700 Shades Crest Rd. 
 

 APPLICANT/OWNER: Whitney Bailey Holland 
 

 GENERAL DISCUSSION: This is a compatible rezoning of annexed property on 
Shades Crest Rd. from JC E-2 to VH R-1. Property was annexed overnight by 
Ordinance 3001 on 03/22/21.  

 
 STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
MOTION  Mr. Weaver made a motion to recommend Rezoning from JC E-2 to Vestavia 
Hills R-1 for the property located at 1700 Shades Crest Rd. Second was by Mr. Sykes. Motion 
was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Maloof– yes  Mr. Ferrell – yes    
Mr. Honeycutt– yes  Mr. Sykes – yes  
Mr. Weaver – yes  Ms. Barnes – yes 
Motion carried. 
 







Ordinance Number 3017 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3017 

ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 WHEREAS, on the 22nd day of March, 2021, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

1. That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2829 Acton Place 
Lindsay and Jake Brown, Owner(s) 

More Particularly described as follows: 

The following tract of land situated in the Southeast 1/4 of the Northwest 
1/4, Section 34, Township 18 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, 
Alabama and being more particularly described as follows:  

Commence at the Southwest corner of the Southeast 1 /4 of the Northwest 
1 /4, Section 34, Township 18 South, Range 2 West; Thence East along the 
South 1/4 -1/4 line, 333.17 feet to the point of beginning; Thence 92 degrees 
48 minutes 53 seconds left, 303.77 feet; to the southerly right-of-way of 
Acton Place; Thence 72 degrees 24 minutes 57 seconds right, 150.00 feet 
along said right-of-way; Thence 90 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds right, 
and leaving said right-of-way 170.20 feet; Thence 20 degrees 23 minutes 
56 seconds right, 196.16 feet to the south 1 /4 - 1 /4 line; Thence 90 degrees 
00 minutes 00 seconds right, 185.00 feet along said 1 /4 - 1 /4 line to the 
point of beginning. 



Ordinance Number 3017 
Page 2 

 

 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 28th day of June, 2021. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3017 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 28th day of June, 2021, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2021. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



Subject
Property

I45
9

CAHABA RIVER

CALDWELL MILL

DE
NY

SE

CO
LO

NN
AD

E

ACTON

JE
NN

Y

CAMP HORNER

HE
AL

TH
Y

RESERVE

CO
LO

NY
 PA

RK

BL
UE

 LA
KE

TIM
BE

RL
AK

E

ALTADENA LAKE

OLD LOONEY MILL

FIVE OAKS

PINE TREE

AL
TA

 VI
EW

OLD 280

REDWING

WHITNEY

LAKELAND

DANBURY

CALDWELL

DEVEREUX

AL
TA

DE
NA

 LA
KE

AC
TO

N

HE
ALT

HY

I45
9

LAKELAND

2829 Acton Place±

Legend
Vestavia_Hills_City_Limits

2829 Acton Place



2829 Acton Place



Property: 2829 Acton Place

8. A non-refundable administrative fee of $100 has been paid to the city.
Furthermore, voluntary contributions, including an application fee, of
$ _____ will be paid to offset costs associated with the annexation.
Yes___ No ___ Comment ______________ _

9. Property is fre cl clear of hazardous waste, debris and materials.
Yes_........,;_ No ___ Comment ______________ _

10. Are there any concern� departments?
Yes ___ No ___ Comments: ______________ _

11. Information on chil� Number in family __ -�.5� ___ ; Plan to enroll in VH
schools Yes_i/ __ N No ____ Comments: __________ _

Other Comments:
------------------------

�-----· 
ck,?g"e Pierce

1 _ 
(").-_ .-, JChairman c::;:r- ?5 - d 

2829 Acton Place



CITY OF VEST A VIA HILLS 

Department Review of Proposed Annexation 

(To be completed by Official City Reviewers) 

The following properties have requested to be annexed into the City. Please review this request 
and then forward your comments to the City Clerk as soon as is reasonably possible. 

Location: 2829 Acton Place 

Engineering; Public Services Date: J � 2.,/
--

L/ Initials: 
-------

d d in good condition;
r- ---- . noted· roadway recently pave an 

2829 Acton Place -- no significant concerns , 
. . rties remain in County so roadway

32x48 CMP under roadway in ok condition; some ne1ghbonng prope 

maintenance in this area will continued to be shared. 

Police Department: Date: Initials: 
-------

Comments: 

Fire Department: Date: ) /.2z }z,1 
j 

Initials: L':p.

Comments: 

Board of Education: Date: �/ �/ 8/ Initials:_'Sj�/!3�--

Comments: 

2829 Acton Place



2829 Acton Place



City of Vestavia Hills
Tax Calculator

Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX MILLAGE

Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills

0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE
Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

====>  2829 Acton Place Property Address

====>   $                                                           335,100  Appraised Value of Property TOTAL MARKET VALUE

10% Assessment Homestead Rate

$33,510.00 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

Citizen Access Portal 
Descriptor

Notes

$688.63 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (20.55 mills rate)
$963.41 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (28.75 mills rate)

$1,652.04
Total County remits to City for split with 
BOE

CITY

$506.00
SPC DIST1 BOE local rev (County gives 
directly to BOE)

SPC SCHOOL1 (15.1 mills rate)
$274.78 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE
$688.63 Annexation Revenue to CITY CITY (General Fund portion) (20.55 mills)

$1,744.20 Annexation Revenue to BOE
SCHOOL + SPC SCHOOL1 + 
CITY (BOE portion)

(8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

$2,432.83 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

Legend
City Revenue
BOE Revenue

2829 Acton Place



2829 Acton Place



2829 Acton Place



2829 Acton Place



2829 Acton Place



Ordinance Number 3018 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3018 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY E-2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-1 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-2 (low density 

residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-1 (low density residential district):  

2829 Acton Place 
Jake and Lindsay Brown, Owners 

More Particularly described as follows: 

The following tract of land situated in the Southeast 1/4 of the Northwest 
1/4, Section 34, Township 18 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, 
Alabama and being more particularly described as follows:  

Commence at the Southwest corner of the Southeast 1 /4 of the Northwest 
1 /4, Section 34, Township 18 South, Range 2 West; Thence East along the 
South 1/4 -1/4 line, 333.17 feet to the point of beginning; Thence 92 degrees 
48 minutes 53 seconds left, 303.77 feet; to the southerly right-of-way of 
Acton Place; Thence 72 degrees 24 minutes 57 seconds right, 150.00 feet 
along said right-of-way; Thence 90 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds right, 
and leaving said right-of-way 170.20 feet; Thence 20 degrees 23 minutes 
56 seconds right, 196.16 feet to the south 1 /4 - 1 /4 line; Thence 90 degrees 
00 minutes 00 seconds right, 185.00 feet along said 1 /4 - 1 /4 line to the 
point of beginning. 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of June, 2021. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 



Ordinance Number 3018 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3018 is a true and correct 
copy of such 28th day of June, 2021, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2021. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 

 
 



Ordinance Number 3018 
Page 3 

 
 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     MAY 13, 2021 
 

 CASE:  P-0521-19 
 

 REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning JC E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1  
 

    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2829 Acton Pl. 
 

 APPLICANT/OWNER: Lindsay & Jake Brown 
 

 GENERAL DISCUSSION: This is a compatible rezoning of annexed property on 
Acton Pl. from JC E-2 to VH R-1. Property was annexed overnight by Ordinance 
3002 on 03/22/21.  

 
 STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
MOTION  Mr. Weaver made a motion to recommend Rezoning from JC E-2 to Vestavia 
Hills R-1 for the property located at 2829 Acton Pl. Second was by Mr. Sykes. Motion was 
carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Maloof– yes  Mr. Ferrell – yes    
Mr. Honeycutt– yes  Mr. Sykes – yes  
Mr. Weaver – yes  Ms. Barnes – yes 
Motion carried. 
 





Ordinance Number 3019 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3019 

ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 WHEREAS, on the 22nd day of March, 2021, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

1. That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2632 Alta Vista Circle 
Lots 15 & 16, Altadena Valley Country Club Sector 

Victor and Cynthia Maldonado, Owner(s) 

2. That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

3. That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 28th day of June, 2021. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 



Ordinance Number 3019 
Page 2 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3019 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 28th day of June, 2021, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2021. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



Subject
Property

I45
9

AC
TO

N

AL
TA

DE
NA AL
TA

 GL
EN

CAMP HORNER

ALTADENA LAKE

AL
TA

 VI
ST

A

BR
IAR

WOOD

REDBUD

ALTADENA PARK

HICKORY RIDGE

ALTA
DENA RIDGE

REDWING
LAKELAND

DANBURY

OS
SA

 W
IN

TH
A

THORNHILL
I45

9

ACTON

ACTON

ALTADENA PARK

LAKELAND

2632 Alta Vista Circle±

Legend
Vestavia_Hills_City_Limits

2632 Alta Vista Circle 
Lots 15 & 16



2632 Alta Vista Circle 
Lots 15 & 16



2632 Alta Vista Circle 
Lots 15 & 16



2632 Alta Vista Circle 
Lots 15 & 16



2632 Alta Vista Circle 
Lots 15 & 16



2632 Alta Vista Circle 
Lots 15 & 16



2632 Alta Vista Circle 
Lots 15 & 16



City of Vestavia Hills
Tax Calculator

Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX MILLAGE

Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills

0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE
Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

====>  2632 Alta Vista Circle (lts 15 & 16 Property Address

====>   $                                                           345,800  Appraised Value of Property TOTAL MARKET VALUE

10% Assessment Homestead Rate

$34,580.00 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

Citizen Access Portal 
Descriptor

Notes

$710.62 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (20.55 mills rate)
$994.18 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (28.75 mills rate)

$1,704.79
Total County remits to City for split with 
BOE

CITY

$522.16
SPC DIST1 BOE local rev (County gives 
directly to BOE)

SPC SCHOOL1 (15.1 mills rate)
$283.56 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE
$710.62 Annexation Revenue to CITY CITY (General Fund portion) (20.55 mills)

$1,799.89 Annexation Revenue to BOE
SCHOOL + SPC SCHOOL1 + 
CITY (BOE portion)

(8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

$2,510.51 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

Legend
City Revenue
BOE Revenue

2632 Alta Vista Circle 
Lots 15 & 16



2632 Alta Vista Circle 
Lots 15 & 16



2632 Alta Vista Circle 
Lots 15 & 16



2632 Alta Vista Circle 
Lots 15 & 16



2632 Alta Vista Circle 
Lots 15 & 16



Ordinance Number 3020 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3020 

ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 WHEREAS, on the 22nd day of March, 2021, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

1. That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2600 Alta Vista Circle 
Lot 8, Altadena Valley Country Club Sector 

Mark and Hillary Smith, Owner(s) 

2. That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

3. That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 28th day of June, 2021. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 



Ordinance Number 3020 
Page 2 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3020 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 28th day of June, 2021, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2021. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



I45
9

AC
TO

N

AL
TA

DE
NA AL
TA

 GL
EN

CAMP HORNER

ALTADENA LAKE

ALT
A V

IST
A

BR
IAR

WOOD

REDBUD

ALTADENA PARK

HICKORY RIDGE

ALTA
DENA RIDGE

REDWING
LAKELAND

DANBURY

OS
SA

 W
IN

TH
A

THORNHILL

I45
9

ACTON

ACTON

ALTADENA PARK

LAKELAND

Subject
Property

2600 Alta Vista Circle±

Legend
Vestavia_Hills_City_Limits

2600 Alta Vista Circle



2600 Alta Vista Circle



2600 Alta Vista Circle



2600 Alta Vista Circle



2600 Alta Vista Circle



City of Vestavia Hills
Tax Calculator

Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX MILLAGE

Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills

0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE
Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

====>  2600 Alta Vista Circle  Property Address

====>   $                                                           238,900  Appraised Value of Property TOTAL MARKET VALUE

10% Assessment Homestead Rate

$23,890.00 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

Citizen Access Portal 
Descriptor

Notes

$490.94 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (20.55 mills rate)
$686.84 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (28.75 mills rate)

$1,177.78
Total County remits to City for split with 
BOE

CITY

$360.74
SPC DIST1 BOE local rev (County gives 
directly to BOE)

SPC SCHOOL1 (15.1 mills rate)
$195.90 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE
$490.94 Annexation Revenue to CITY CITY (General Fund portion) (20.55 mills)

$1,243.47 Annexation Revenue to BOE
SCHOOL + SPC SCHOOL1 + 
CITY (BOE portion)

(8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

$1,734.41 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

Legend
City Revenue
BOE Revenue

2600 Alta Vista Circle



2600 Alta Vista Circle



2600 Alta Vista Circle



2600 Alta Vista Circle



2600 Alta Vista Circle



2600 Alta Vista Circle



Ordinance Number 3021 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3021 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM SHELBY COUNTY E-
1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-2 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Shelby County E-1 (low density 

residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-2 (medium density residential district):  

2632, 2624 and 2600 Alta Vista Circle 
Lots 8, 14, 15 & 16, Altadena Country Club Sector 

Victor Maldonado and Mark & Hillary Smith, Owners 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of June, 2021. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 3021 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3021 is a true and correct 
copy of such 28th day of June, 2021, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2021. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 

 
 





 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     MAY 13, 2021 
 

 CASE:  P-0521-14 
 

 REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning SC E-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2  
 

    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2600, 2624, & 2632 Alta Vista Circle 
 

 APPLICANT/OWNER: Mark Smith & Victor Maldonado 
 

 GENERAL DISCUSSION: This is a compatible rezoning of annexed property on 
Alta Vista Cir. from SC E-1 to VH R-2. Property was annexed overnight by 
Ordinance 3003 & 3004 on 03/22/21.  

 
 STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
MOTION  Mr. Weaver made a motion to recommend Rezoning from JC E-1 to Vestavia 
Hills R-2 for the property located at 2600, 2624, & 2632 Alta Vista Circle. Second was by Mr. 
Honeycutt. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Maloof– yes  Mr. Ferrell – yes    
Mr. Honeycutt– yes  Mr. Sykes – yes  
Mr. Weaver – yes  Ms. Barnes – yes 
Motion carried. 
 







RESOLUTION NUMBER 5332 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 
FOR SR AND RS LLC D/B/A VESTAVIA PACKAGE 
STORE; SAMIR RANA, EXECUTIVES 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves the 

alcohol license for SR and RS LLC d/b/a Vestavia Package Store, located at 2970 

Columbiana Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the off-premise sale of 011-Lounge Retail 

Liquor - Class II (Package); Samir Rana, executives. 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of June, 2021. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit - Resolution 5332



STATE OF ALABAMA
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL BOARD

ALCOHOL LICENSE APPLICATION
Confirmation Number : 202106031 51737917

Type License: 011 - LOUNGE RETAIL LTQUOR - CLASS il (PACKAGE) State:

Type License: State:

Trade Name: VESTAVIA pACKAGE STORE

Applicant: SR AND RS LLC

Location Address: 2970 COLUMBIANA RD

Mailing Address: 2970 COLUMBIANA RD

County: JEFFERSON Tobacco sales: YES

Product Type: QJ

County:

County:

Filing Fee:

Transfer Fee: $50.00

VESTAVIA HILLS, AL 35216

VESTAVTA HILLS, AL 35216

Tobacco Vending Machines: 0

TYPe OwnershiP: LLC

Book, Page, or Document info: 823478

Do you sell Draft Beer?:

Date Incorporated: 01 12912021 State incorporated: 4;_

Date of Authority: O112912021

County Incorporated:

Federal Tax ID: 861761902 Alabama State Sales Tax ID: R010932017

Date and Place of Birth: Residence Address:Name: Title:

Has applicant complied with financial responsibility ABC RR 20-X-5-.14? YES
Does ABC have any actions pending against the current licensee? NO
Has anyone, including manager or applicant, had a FederaVState permit or license suspended or revoked? NO
Has a liquor, wine, malt or brewed license for these premises ever been denied, suspended, or revoked? NO
Are the applicant(s) named above, the only person(s), in any manner interested in the business sought to be
licensed? YES
Are any of the applicants, whether individual, member of a partnership or association, or officers and
directors of a corporation itself, in any manner monetarily interested, either directly or indirectly, in the
profits of any other class of business regulated under authority of this act? NO
Does applicant own or control, directly or indirectly, hold lien against any real or personal property which is
rented, leased or used in the conduct of business by the holder of any vinous, malt or brewed beverage, or
distilled liquors permit or license issued under authority of this act? NO
Is applicant receiving, either directly or indirectly, any loan, credit, money, or the equivalent thereof from or
through a subsidiary or affiliate or other licensee, or from any firm, association or corporation operating
under or regulated by the authority of this act? NO

Contact Person: SAMIR RANA
Business Phone: 205-823-8295
Fax:

PREVIOUS LICENSE INFORMATION:

Home Phone: 225-993-8666
Cell Phone: 225-993-8666
E-mail: SAMI R61 17 Z@GMAI L.COM

Previous License Number(s)
TrAdE NaMe: VESTAVIA PACKAGE STORE License 1: 011072937
APPIiCANI: A AND A DISCOUNT LIQUORS LLC L|CENSE 2:

5AIVIIK KAI\A
8459192 - AL

5ULL OWNt u4 t4 t96 I
NEPAL

1 514 
.1 

3TH AVE APT 17

BIRMINGHAM, AL 35205

Exhibit - Resolution 5332



STATE OF ALABAMA
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL BOARD

ALCOHOL LICENSE APPLICATION

Confi rmation Number : 20210603 1 517 37 917

If applicant is leasing the property, is a copy of the lease agreement attached? YES
Name of Property owner/lessor and phone number: LEJ J R LLC 205-822-1998
What is lessors primary business? PROPERTY MANAGEMENT
Is lessor involved in any way with the alcoholic beverage business? NO
Is there any further interest, or connection with, the licensee's business by the lessor? NO

Does the premise have a fully equipped kitchen? NO
Is the business used to habitually and principally provide food to the public? NO
Does the establishment have restroom facilities? YES
Is the premise equipped with services and facilities for on premises consumption of alcoholic beverages? N O

Will the business be operated primarily as a package store? YES
Building Dimensions Square Footage: 1715 Display Square Footage: 1500
Building seating capacity: Q Does Licensed premises include a patio area? NO
License Structure: SHOPPING CENTER License covers: PORTION OF
Number of licenses in the vicinity: Q Nearest: 0
Nearest school: 0 miles Nearest church: 0 miles Nearest residence: 0 mileS
Location is within: ClTy LIMITS Police protection: g11y

Has any person(s) with any interest, including manager, whether as sole applicant, officer, member, or
partner been charged (whether convicted or not) ofany law violation(s)?
Name: Violation & Date: Arres

Exhibit - Resolution 5332



STATE OF ALABAMA
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL BOARD
Confirmation Numb er : 20210603 1 517 37 917

NOTICE OF TRANSFER OF ABC LICENSED BUSINESS

NOTE: A Copy of Operating Asreement Must be Attached To Application

CURRENT LICENSEE:
A AND A DISCOUNT LIQUORS LLC
Address: 2970 COLUMBIANA RD

VESTAVIA HILLS, AL 35216
Telephone: 205-823-8295

NEW APPLICANT:
SR AND RS LLC
Address: 2970 COLUMBTANA RD

VESTAVIA HILLS, AL 35216
Telephone: 20S-823-8295

Current License No:ot 1072937

LICENSED PREMISES ADDRESS: 2970 COLUMBIANA RD VESTAVIA HILLS, AL 35216

THE AFORENAMED HEREBY SERVE NOTICE TO THE ABC BOARD OF THE ATTACHED
CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT GOVERNING THE CONT!NUATION OF SALES OF ALGOHOLIC
BEVERAGES ON THE LICENSED PREMISES.

The Parties to this agreement hereby acknowledge and affirm that the New (Applicant) Licensee will,
at all times, act as the AGENT for the Current (Named) Licensee, and the Current Licensee shall act as
PRINCIPAL for the purposes of the attached Agreement. The Principal shall be bound by all acts and/or
omissions of the Agent in the operation of the licensed premises.

The Current Licensee is now and shall remain liable for any violations of ABC Rules and Regulations
or other Alabama Law for the duration of the attached Agreement; and, further, that the Current Licensee has
the right and authority, under Alabama Law, to surrender the ABC Llcense to the ABC Board at any time.

The parties acknowledge that the operation of the licensed premises shall remain subject to
inspection by ABC Enforcement, and must comply with all State and Local regulations and Laws, and that
the local ABC Enforcement District Offlce must be immediately notified of any change in the attached
Agreement.

THE CURRENT LICENSE WILL NOT BE RENEWED.

WITNESS our hands and seals on this tne \6 OaV or 
-SUC'K 

, 2OQJ-

CURRENT LICENSEE (NAMED ON LICENSE) NEW LTCENSEE (APPLTCANT)

WITNESS: (By ABC Enforcement)
Revised 9/08

Print Name: Na-ffih bana
Title: Vt1mlly 1lttAbOf Title: fiar. o.firy flrntgr

Exhibit - Resolution 5332



ORDINANCE NUMBER 3024 

AN ORDINANCE TO ELECT NOT TO EXERCISE THE RIGHT OF FIRST 
REFUSAL PURSUANT TO THE CONSTRUCTION, OPERATION AND 
RECIPROCAL EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN VESTAVIA 
PLAZA LLC AND THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS ALABAMA DATED 
NOVEMBER 21, 2013 

WHEREAS, on November 21, 2013, the City entered into a Construction, Operation and 

Reciprocal Easement Agreement (“the COREA”) between Vestavia Plaza LLC (the “Developer”) 

and the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (“the City”) for the Vestavia Plaza Shopping Center, 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, a copy of which is marked as Exhibit A, attached to and incorporated 

into this Ordinance Number 3024 as if written fully herein; and 

WHEREAS, ARTICLE IX, entitled “RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL” grants to the City 

the irrevocable right of first refusal (“ROFR”) at the option of the City to purchase the Vestavia 

Plaza Shopping Center (the “Developer Tract”) or any portion thereof which the Developer desires 

to sell, transfer, convey or lease (with an option to purchase) to any bona fide third party; and 

WHEREAS, ARTICLE IX details the required notification requirements of the Developer 

and the City should the City wish to exercise the ROFR on the sale of the Developer Tract; and 

WHEREAS, Dwight L. Mixson, Jr., Burr and Forman, attorney for the Developer notified 

the City in a letter dated June 21, 2021 that pursuant to Article IX of the Agreement, that the 

“Developer has entered into a purchase and sale agreement” and that “pursuant to 9.1(c) of the 

Agreement, the City has ten (10) business days to notify the Developer of the City’s exercise of 

it’s right of first refusal (“ROFR”).  A copy of said letter is marked as Exhibit B, attached to and 

incorporated into this Ordinance Number 3024 as if written fully herein; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is not in the best public interest to exercise 

the City’s ROFR and, therefore, should decline to purchase the Developer Tract. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND THE CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City does not exercise it’s ROFR to purchase the Developer Tract pursuant to

ARTICLE IX of the Agreement; and

2. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized and directed to provide written notice

to Vestavia Plaza, LLC and attorney, Dwight L. Mixson, Jr., as follows:



(a) That the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (“City”) does not and will not

exercise its Right of First Refusal to purchase the Developer Tract pursuant to the

terms, provisions and conditions of the COREA; and

(b) That if the contemplated sale of the Developer Tract to SW Holdings, II,

LLC is closed, then in such event the City welcomes said purchaser to the City and

will be a good neighbor;

(c) A copy of this Ordinance Number 3024 shall be sent to Vestavia Plaza, LLC

and attorney, Dwight L. Mixson, Jr., together with the notice.

3. The Mayor and City Manager are authorized and directed to execute any and all

documents necessary pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth in ARTICLE IX of

the Agreement to notify the Developer of the City’s decision not to purchase said

Developer Tract; and

4. The notice as aforesaid shall be delivered to Vestavia Plaza, LLC and attorney, Dwight L.

Mixson, Jr., on or before July 2, 2021.

5. This Ordinance Number 3024 shall become effective immediately following

posting/publishing pursuant to Alabama law.

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 28th day of June, 2021.

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby certify 
that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3024 is a true and correct copy of such 
Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills on the 28th day 
of June, 2021 as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, Vestavia Hills 
New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2021. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3024



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3024



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3024



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3024



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3024



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3024



RESOLUTION NUMBER 5333 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ACCEPT A 
PROPOSAL FROM RAY ENGINEERING GROUP TO PROVIDE 
ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE CITY HALL AND 
POLICE/COURT BUILDINGS 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to accept a proposal from Ray Engineering Group

to provide electrical engineering services for the City of Vestavia Hills City Hall and

Police/Court buildings at a cost not to exceed $6,500; and

2. A copy of said proposal is marked as Exhibit A, attached to and incorporated into this

Resolution Number 5333 as if written fully therein; and

3. This Resolution Number 5333 is effective immediately upon adoption and approval.

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 12th day of July, 2021.

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5333



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5333



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5333



Ordinance No. 3022 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3022 

AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL ORDINANCE NUMBERS 56 AND 2279; 
TO AMEND CHAPTER 6, ARTICLE II, DIVISION I, SECTIONS 16-17, 6-
18, 6-19, IN THE VESTAVIA HILLS CODE OF ORDINANCES; AND TO 
PROHIBIT THE SALE, POSSESSION, USE, STORAGE, DISTRIBUTION 
AND MANUFACTURE OF PYROTECHNICS AND FIREWORKS IN 
THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA; AND TO PRESCRIBE 
THE PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION OF THIS ORDINANCE. 

THIS ORDINANCE NUMBER 3022 is approved and adopted by the City Council of 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on this the 12th day of July, 2021. 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, on December 3, 1958, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama approved and adopted Ordinance Number 56 prohibiting the sale, possession or use of 

pyrotechnics in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

WHEREAS, on November 23, 2009, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama approved and adopted Ordinance Number 2279 to prohibit the sale, possession or use 

of consumer fireworks in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Code of Ordinances codifies Ordinance Number 56 and 

Ordinance Number 2279 in Chapter 6, Article II, Division 1, Sections 6-17, 6-18 and 6-19; and 

WHEREAS, the Alabama Legislature enacted Act Number 2021-399 (the “Act”) relating 

to fireworks and pyrotechnics; to amend Sections 8-17-210, 8-17-211, 8-17-216.1, 8-17-217, 8-

17-218, 8-17-219, 8-17-220, 8-17-225, 8-17-226, 8-17-237, 8-17-255, 34-33-11, 34-33A-12 and

36-19-29, Code of Alabama, 1975; and to add Section 36-19-31 to the Code of Alabama, 1975;

to redesignate common fireworks as consumer fireworks and to provide for the regulation of

consumer fireworks; and

WHEREAS, the Act amended Title 8-17-226, Code of Alabama, 1975, to read as follows 

“§8-17-226. 
(a) This article shall in no wise affect the validity of any city
ordinance further restricting the sale or use of aerial devices and
audible ground devices, including the authority to adopt
ordinances related to aerial devices, sparkling devices, and audible
ground devices in accordance with Section 11-45-9.1.
(b) A municipality may enact an ordinance further restricting
the sale or use of sparkling devices or novelties.  The State Fire
Marshal shall keep a current listing of those municipalities that
have enacted an ordinance further restricting the sale or use of



Ordinance No. 3022 
Page 2 

 
sparkling devices or novelties.  This subsection shall not affect any 
existing ordinance in a Class 1 municipality;” and 

 

WHEREAS, the Act was signed by Governor Kay Ivey on May 13, 2021 and becomes 

effective July 12, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama hereby finds and 

determines that the enactment of this Ordinance Number 3022 prohibiting the sale, possession, 

use, storage, distribution and manufacture of pyrotechnics and fireworks within the City limits 

of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama will promote the health, safety and welfare of the 

inhabitants of the municipality. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: DEFINITIONS:  For purposes of this Ordinance Number 3022, the term 

“fireworks” shall mean and include the following: 

A. Pyrotechnics. 

B. Squib. 

C. Rocket. 

D. Firecracker. 

E. Roman candle. 

F. Fire balloon. 

G. Signal light. 

H. Railway track torpedo. 

I. Flashlight composition. 

J. Aerial devices being any type of Department of Transportation (“D.O.T”) Class 

C Consumer Fireworks as defined in Alabama Legislative Act No. 2021-399 (codified at Title 

8-17-210, Code of Alabama, 1975). 

K. Audible ground devices being any type of D.O.T. Class C Consumer Fireworks 

as defined by Alabama Legislative Act No. 2021-399 (codified at Title 8-17-210, Code of 

Alabama, 1975). 

L. D.O.T. Class C Consumer Fireworks as defined in Alabama Legislative Act No. 

2021-399 (codified at Title 8-17-210, Code of Alabama, 1975). 

M. Novelties as defined in Alabama Legislative Act No. 2021-399 (codified at Title 

8-17-210, Code of Alabama, 1975), including any and all of the following: 



Ordinance No. 3022 
Page 3 

 
  (i) party poppers. 

  (ii) snappers. 

  (iii) toy smoke devices. 

  (iv) Snake, glow worms. 

  (v) wire sparklers, dipped sticks. 

N. Sparkling devices as defined in Alabama Legislative Act No. 2021-399 (codified 

at Title 8-17-210, Code of Alabama, 1975). 

O. Anything that will detonate or explode. 

P. Other devices or compositions used to obtain visible or audible pyrotechnic 

display or other result. 

SECTION 2: UNLAWFUL AND PROHIBITED ACTS:  Except as herein provided, it 

shall be unlawful for any person, firm, partnership, corporation or other legal entity to sell, 

possess, use, keep, store, distribute or manufacture any pyrotechnics or fireworks within the 

corporate City limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

SECTION 3: PERMIT FOR SPECIAL EVENT:  The Chief of the Vestavia Hills 

Police Department may, upon due application, grant and issue a permit to a properly qualified 

person, firm, partnership, corporation or other legal entity for producing, making or giving a 

pyrotechnic display of fireworks in the public parks or other open places within the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

SECTION 4: VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES:  It shall be unlawful to violate any of 

the terms and provisions of this ordinance.  Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the 

said terms and provisions of this ordinance shall, upon conviction, be punished in accordance 

with Title 11-45-9, Code of Alabama, 1975, for a misdemeanor violation for each such offense.  

Each day any violation of this ordinance shall continue shall constitute a separate offense. 

SECTION 5:  SEVERABILITY CLAUSE:  If any part, section or subdivision of this 

ordinance shall be held unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be 

construed to invalidate or impair the remainder of this ordinance, which shall continue in full 

force and effect notwithstanding such holding. 

SECTION 6: ARTICLE AND SECTION HEADINGS:  The article and section 

headings and captions contained herein are included for convenience only, and shall not be 

considered a part hereof or affect in any manner the construction or interpretation hereof. 



Ordinance No. 3022 
Page 4 

 
SECTION 7.  REPEALER CLAUSE:  Ordinance Number 56 and Ordinance Number 

2279, codified in Chapter 6, Article II, Division 1, Sections 6-16, 6-17 and 6-18, are hereby 

repealed. 

SECTION 8:  EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Ordinance Number 3022 shall become 

effective immediately upon adoption and publication or posting as required by Alabama law. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 12th day of July, 2021. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca H. Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance No. 3022 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills 
on the 12th day of July, 2021, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, and 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day 
of ______________, 2021. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings  
      City Clerk 



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 3022



Ordinance Number 3023 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3023 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL 
FOR A HOME OCCUPATION 

WHEREAS, on October 16, 2000 the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama approved and adopted Ordinance Number 1838 creating and establishing a 

P.U.D. (planned unit development) classification; and 

WHEREAS, on February 19, 2001 the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills 

adopted and approved Ordinance Number 1864 to rezone 3,350 +/- acres from multiple 

Jefferson County and Vestavia Hills zoning classifications to Vestavia Hills P.U.D.; and 

WHEREAS, Section 709.5.A.1.b of Ordinance Number 1838 classifies a “home 

occupation” permitted only as a “Conditional Use” and 

WHEREAS, Willie and Darlene S. Myers, Jr., have submitted application for 

conditional use approval for a home occupation to be operated in the residence located at 

4950 Reynolds Lane, Vestavia Hills, Alabama located in the Liberty Park P.U.D.; and 

WHEREAS, Mr. and Mrs. Myers have indicated in their application for 

conditional use approval that they will operate a claims adjustment business out of their 

home pursuant to the specifications of a home occupation; and 

WHEREAS, a copy of said application dated May 6, 2021 is attached and hereby 

incorporated into this Ordinance Number 3023. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Conditional Use Approval is hereby approved for Willie and Darlene S. Myers,

Jr., for a home occupation as described in the above-referenced application for

their residence located at 4950 Reynolds Lane, Vestavia Hills, Alabama located

in Liberty Park P.U.D. subject to the provisions in Article 9 of the Vestavia

Hills Zoning Code outlined as follows:

(1) “Home occupation is defined as any use customarily conducted entirely

within a dwelling and carried on solely by the inhabitant thereof, and which

use is clearly incidental, accessory, subordinate and secondary to the use of

the dwelling for dwelling purposes, and does not change the character of the



Ordinance Number 3023 
Page 2 

 

dwelling itself or any part of parcel of property in the neighborhood 

surrounding said dwelling. 

(2) Home occupations shall be conducted only in the main dwelling building 

on the lot.  No more than twenty-five percent (25%) of the said dwelling 

may be used for a home occupation. 

(3) There shall be no public display of goods and absolutely no commodities 

sold on the premises; no customer, client or employee traffic to, at or near 

the residence that is generated, directly or indirectly, by said home 

occupation.  There shall be no pickup or deliveries to the residences that are 

related to said home occupation whether directly or indirectly. 

(4) No sign may be attached to the dwelling or any part of the real estate 

advertising any home occupation. 

(5) No home occupation or profession shall be permitted if such occupation 

creates noise, odors, vibrations or traffic which interferes with the 

residential qualities of the neighborhood insofar as health, safety, morals, 

convenience and general welfare are concerned. 

(6) In order to be a permitted home occupation or profession, the use must be 

one which is habitually, customarily and commonly established as a 

reasonable incidental, accessory, subordinate and secondary use. 

(7) Operation of any and all other business of any nature in residential zones is 

expressly prohibited; and 

(8) The activity carried on as home occupation shall be limited to the hours 

between 7:00 AM and 10:00 PM.” 

2. Conditional Use Approval is further conditioned upon and subject to all 

applicable private and restrictive covenants attached to the property located at 

4950 Reynolds Lane, Vestavia Hills, Alabama located in the Liberty Park 

P.U.D. 

3. A City of Vestavia Hills Business License shall be issued upon application and 

payment by Mr. and Mrs. Myers working to the rules and regulations outlined 

in the Vestavia Hills Business License Code and shall be renewed each year 



Ordinance Number 3023 
Page 3 

 

that the home occupation is operated from the location at 4950 Reynolds Lane, 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama located in the Liberty Park P.U.D. 

4. At any time should Mr. and/or Mrs. Myers vacate the premises located 4950 

Reynolds Lane, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, discontinue or relocate their business, 

this conditional use approval shall be nullified and said Ordinance Number 

3023 shall be automatically repealed. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 26th day of July, 2021. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3023 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 26th day of July, 2021 as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, Vestavia 
Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2021. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     JUNE 10, 2021 
 

 CASE:  P-0621-22 
 

 REQUESTED ACTION:   Conditional Use Approval for a home based business  
 

    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  4950 Reynolds Ln. 
 

 APPLICANT/OWNER:  Willie & Darlene S. Myers, Jr. 
 

 GENERAL DISCUSSION:  The applicant wishes to conduct a home based business 
in Liberty Park. As currently required by the Liberty Park PUD a conditional use 
permit is required for a home based business. A description of the applicants business 
is attached. The property is zoned PR-1. 

 
 LIBERTY PARK MASTER PLAN:  This request is consistent with the procedures 

of the Liberty Park PUD. 
 

 STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  I recommend the Commission recommend 
approval with the following conditions:  
1. Home occupations shall be conducted only in the principal dwelling. No 
more than twenty-five (25) percent, up to 500 sq. ft., of the dwelling may be 
used for a home occupation. 
2. There shall be no outdoor display or storage associated with the home 
occupation and no commodities shall be sold on the premises other than by 
phone, mail or internet. No goods shall be delivered to a purchaser on the 
premises. 
3. No sign may be attached to the dwelling or any part of the real estate 
advertising any home occupation. 
4. No home occupation shall be permitted if it creates noise, odors, vibrations 
or traffic congestion, which interferes with the residential qualities of the 
neighborhood insofar as health, safety, morals, convenience and general 
welfare are concerned. 



 2 

5. In order to be a permitted home occupation, the use must be one which is 
habitually, customarily, and commonly established as a reasonable incidental, 
accessory, subordinate and secondary use. The existing dwelling shall not be 
enlarged to accommodate the home occupation; nor shall any accessory 
structure be built for the purpose of operating the home occupation. 
6. No home occupation shall be permitted that requires the operation or 
keeping on premises of a commercial vehicle. 
7. No persons other than members of the family residing on the premises shall 
be employed by the home occupation. 
8. Home occupations shall be limited to the hours between 7:00 a.m. and 
10:00 p.m. 
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request 
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

 
MOTION  Mr. Larson made a motion to recommend Conditional Use Approval for a home 
occupation for 4950 Reynolds Ln.with the following conditions: 

1. Home occupations shall be conducted only in the principal dwelling. No 
more than twenty-five (25) percent, up to 500 sq. ft., of the dwelling may be 
used for a home occupation. 
2. There shall be no outdoor display or storage associated with the home 
occupation and no commodities shall be sold on the premises other than by 
phone, mail or internet. No goods shall be delivered to a purchaser on the 
premises. 
3. No sign may be attached to the dwelling or any part of the real estate 
advertising any home occupation. 
4. No home occupation shall be permitted if it creates noise, odors, vibrations 
or traffic congestion, which interferes with the residential qualities of the 
neighborhood insofar as health, safety, morals, convenience and general 
welfare are concerned. 
5. In order to be a permitted home occupation, the use must be one which is 
habitually, customarily, and commonly established as a reasonable incidental, 
accessory, subordinate and secondary use. The existing dwelling shall not be 
enlarged to accommodate the home occupation; nor shall any accessory 
structure be built for the purpose of operating the home occupation. 
6. No home occupation shall be permitted that requires the operation or 
keeping on premises of a commercial vehicle. 
7. No persons other than members of the family residing on the premises shall 
be employed by the home occupation. 



 3 

8. Home occupations shall be limited to the hours between 7:00 a.m. and 
10:00 p.m. 

 
Second was by Mr. Honeycutt. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Maloof – yes   Mr. Ferrell – yes           
Mr. Romeo – yes    Mr. Larson – yes 
Mr. Honeycutt – yes    Mrs. Barnes – yes 
Motion carried. 
 
 
 
 












	agenda
	June 9 Special Mtg
	June 14 Work Session
	June 14 Reg Meeting
	Resolution 5330
	Ordinance 3013
	Ordinance 3014
	Ordinance 3015
	Ordinance 3016
	Ordinance 3017
	Ordinance 3018
	Ordinance 3019
	Ordinance 3020
	Ordinance 3021
	Resolution 5332
	Ordinance 3024
	Resolution 5333
	Ordinance 3022
	Ordinance 3023



